Approved: <u>3-31-2006</u>

Date

MINUTES OF THE HOUSE ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Joann Freeborn at 3:30 P.M. on March 21, 2006 in Room 231-N of the Capitol.

All members were present except:

Representative Bill Light- excused Representative Pat George- excused Representative Ted Powers- excused Representative Tom Sloan- excused

Committee staff present:

Raney Gilliland, Legislative Research Department Lisa Montgomery, Revisor of Statutes Office Pam Shaffer, Committee Secretary

Conferees appearing before the committee:

Dale Larsen, Westar Energy Director Construction and Maintenance Brady Pryor, Westar Energy Fly Ash Management Joe Dick, Board of Public Utilities William Penrod, Electric Cooperative Art Paylor, Ash Grove Cement Co

Others attending:

See attached list.

Chairperson Freeborn asked for everyone in the gallery to please sign the guest list. The secretary will be emailing minutes to all committee members for minutes not approved today by the end of this week, if secretary has not heard from anyone regarding corrections by next Friday, March 31, the minutes will be considered approved.

The committee members were give a few minutes to look over the minutes for January 31, February 2, 7 and 9. <u>Representative Olson moved to approve the minutes</u>, Representative Svaty seconded, motion carried.

Chairperson Freeborn told the committee that she had authorized Representative Flora to organize todays presentations concerning fly ash and related information. Chairperson Freeborn then turned the meeting over to Representative Flora, who stated he had become interested in fly ash and how to use it, so he had asked some gentleman to come today and talk about fly ash and how to use it.

Mark Shreiber, Westar Energy introduced Dale Larsen Director Construction and Maintenance for Westar Energy to begin the presentation on Fly Ash. Mr. Larsen had no written testimony. He described fly ash as the waste product of burning coal in power stations. Burning coal produces two general types of solid ash; bottom ash, which is the heavy "chunky" cinders that fall down and are removed from the bottom of power plant boilers, and fly ash, which is the lighter, fine particles that leave the boiler with the exhaust gasses. Fly ash particles are removed from the gasses before they go out the stack by filtration in baghouses or electrostatic precipitators. Class C fly ash is produced by burning coal from Wyoming and Montana and is about 25% calcium, if you put water with it, it will set up and harden in about 15 minutes. Class F fly ash is produced by burning coal from Colorado, which is mostly carbon. Jeffery Energy produces over 300,000 ton of fly ash annually, and over 200,000 ton is sold per year. They produce over 100,000 ton of bottom ash annually and Jackson county uses most of it in resurfacing roads. The fly ash from the Lawrence plant is not useable because gypsum is mixed in the scrubber to remove the sulfur, which ruins the marketability of the product.

Brady Pryor, Westar Fly Ash Management, Class C fly ash sets up by itself, does not need anything added to it, the old Class F you needed to add lime or cement to it for it to set up. Mixing the fly ash in with soil, helps solidify roads and foundations prior to paving. Fly ash fills in voids better than cement, no ragged edges.

Joe Dick, Board of Public Utilities Kansas City, KS, (See attachment 1) said that they use a lot of fly ash that comes out of two power plants and they sell some fly ash, they burn a low sulfur coal out of Wyoming. They

## CONTINUATION SHEET

MINUTES OF THE House Environment Committee at 3:30 P.M. on March 21, 2006 in Room 231-N of the Capitol.

use fly ash to fill in rock quarries in the Argentine district of Kansas City, they are 3/4 filled.

Bill Penrod, Holcomb Electric Cooperative explained that they have a dry scrubber so their fly ash is between Class C and F. Most of their product goes into their landfill. It sets up to the consistency of a cinder block, a very hard, very stable product. Their bottom ash they sell to stabilize feedlots. Both of their materials have been tested and there is no leaching of harmful elements or metals from either of them. There is no market in their area for this product. They burn Wyoming coal, but due to their different scrubber, they get different fly ash.

Rick Chider, Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT), Bureau of Materials and Research, gave each committee member a handout (see attachment 2). They have the opportunity to collect a lot of data, which is reflected on the handout, he agrees with everything that has been presented so far. Within KDOT they use fly ash in several different aspects, soil absorption, and they are getting around to more opportunities to use it in concrete, 78,000 tons of fly ash were used in 2000, the use has decreased to about 42,000 tons in 2005 due to the tendency of the product to crack over the long term. They do still use a lot of ash for soil stabilization.

Art Paylor, Ash Grove Cement Company said they produce more cement than is used in the state of Kansas. Their machines are up and running producing cement 94% of the time, producing about 3 million ton of finished cement a year. Kansas consumes about 1.5 million ton of cement a year. The cost of cement has been increasing because of demand and fuel prices. Fuel used to run the machines, operate the kilns, trucks transporting materials, costs of these fuels have all gone up. They get some fly ash from Westar to mix in their cement.

Questions and discussion followed the presentations.

Chairperson Freeborn adjourned the meeting at 4:55.